
PLANNING COMMITTEE

1 April 2019

Dear Councillor

A meeting of the Planning Committee will be held in Committee Room 1 - Marmion 
House on Tuesday, 9th April, 2019 at 6.00 pm. Members of the Committee are 
requested to attend.

Yours faithfully

Chief Executive

A G E N D A

NON CONFIDENTIAL

1 Apologies for Absence 

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

3 Declarations of Interest 

N0N-CONFIDENTIAL



To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (pecuniary and non-
pecuniary) in any matters which are to be considered at this meeting.

When Members are declaring a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in 
respect of which they have dispensation, they should specify the nature of 
such interest.  Members should leave the room if they have a pecuniary or 
non-pecuniary interest in respect of which they do not have a dispensation.  

4 Schedule of Applications (Pages 9 - 22)

(Report of the Assistant Director – Growth and Regeneration)

_______________________________________

Access arrangements

If you have any particular access requirements when attending the meeting, please contact 
Democratic Services on 01827 709267 or e-mail democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk. We can 
then endeavour to ensure that any particular requirements you may have are catered for.

Filming of Meetings

The public part of this meeting may be filmed and broadcast.  Please refer to the Council’s 
Protocol on Filming, Videoing, Photography and Audio Recording at Council meetings which can 
be found here for further information.

The Protocol requires that no members of the public are to be deliberately filmed.  Where 
possible, an area in the meeting room will be set aside for videoing, this is normally from the front 
of the public gallery.  This aims to allow filming to be carried out whilst minimising the risk of the 
public being accidentally filmed.   

If a member of the public is particularly concerned about accidental filming, please consider the 
location of any cameras when selecting a seat.

FAQs

For further information about the Council’s Committee arrangements please see the FAQ page 
here

To Councillors: M Oates, M Bailey, J Chesworth, C Cooke, R Ford, T Jay, K Norchi, 
J Oates, S Peaple, P Standen, M Summers and P Thurgood

mailto:democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/councillors_docs/TBC-Filming-Protocol.docx
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/council-meetings-faqs


1 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
PLANNING COMMITTEE
HELD ON 5th MARCH 2019

PRESENT: Councillor M Oates (Chair), Councillors M Bailey, J Chesworth, 
T Jay, J Oates, S Peaple, P Standen and M Summers

The following officers were present: Matthew Bowers (Assistant Director Growth 
& Regeneration), Andrew Collinson (Senior Planning Officer) and Tracey Pointon 
(Civic and Elections  Officer) Stuart Evans (External Solicitor)

28 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor M Gant, Councillor R Ford & 
Councillor P Thurgood

29 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes of the meeting held on 5th February 2019 were approved and signed 
as a correct record.

(Moved by Councillor J Oates and seconded by Councillor M Summers)

30 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no Declarations of Interest.

31 SCHEDULE OF APPLICATIONS 

Report of Assistant Director - Growth and Regeneration

Application Number 0545/2018

Development Erection of 52 dwellings (re-plan of previously 
approved development 0435/2015]

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Planning Committee 5 March 2019

2

Location Anker Valley, Ashby Road, Tamworth

Resolved 1. Approved subject to the conditions outlined 
below and the entering into a
suitable Section 106 Agreement in accordance 
with the requirements outlined
in this report.

2. If the Section 106 Agreement has not been 
signed before the expiration of
any agreed extension of time then powers are 
delegated to Officers to refuse
permission based on the unacceptability of the 
development without the
required contributions and undertakings as 
outlined in this report.

(Moved by Councillor J Chesworth and seconded by Councillor J Oates)

Issue Papers

Application Ref: 0561/2018

Development: Outline Planning Permission for the demolition of all 
existing buildings and
construction of up to 1540 dwellings (including a 100 bed 
extra care home); a
community hub (up to 2250m2 of gross floorspace for Use 
Class A1-A5, B1B1b,
D1 and D2); a two form entry primary school; the provision 
of green infrastructure
comprising playing fields and sports pavilion; formal and 
informal open space;
children's play areas; woodland planting and habitat 
creation; allotments; walking
and cycling routes and sustainable drainage infrastructure 
(Cross-boundary
application with North Warwickshire Borough Council).

Location: Land to the East of the Former Tamworth Golf Course 
Site, North of Tamworth
Road (B5000) and West of the M42

Resolved That the Committee noted the item and raised the 

Page 4



Planning Committee 5 March 2019

3

following issues:

1. Members are frustrated with the highways position. 
They questioned the ability of the Borough’s strategic 
road network road network to absorb further traffic, a 
new roundabout and traffic lights will not ease 
congestion and lead to more traffic on Pennine Way 
and Junction 10. They consider that the proposed 
highway mitigation within the current application does 
not fully address the issue. Members indicated the 
need for mitigation on Pennine Way, A5/M42 junction, 
Marlborough Way. The current levels of traffic on A5 is 
such that adding any further is just adding to the 
problem. Traffic joining the A5 just adds to the 
problem.

2. Parking restrictions should be considered as part of 
the application to ensure that junction and layout don’t 
create parking problems. 

3. The roundabout would slow traffic down, but does 
nothing to disperse the amount of traffic created as 
part of the scheme.

4. The position of traffic light and roundabout are too 
close together to be able disperse traffic.

5. The construction traffic mitigation is an important 
element of the application.

6. Generally among members there is a view that the 
proposal does not adequately deal with insufficient 
infrastructure.

7. There needs to be full consideration of the primary 
school and secondary implications of the scheme, 
especially with the provision of a primary school on the 
Tamworth Golf Course site.

8. Community facilities (doctors surgery, church 
facilities) should be provided. 

9. Wildlife is a consideration, trees and hedgerows 
need protection. The impact SSSI, Woodland and 
biodiversity is a key issue.

10.Affordable housing on the site, how is this shared 
by each authority? Tamworth BC should be getting 
nomination right for affordable housing.

Page 5



Planning Committee 5 March 2019

4

11.Concern about the impact of development on the 
meaningful gap.

12.Pollution, noise levels and air quality were issues 
that should be considered.

     13. Previous issues have not been addressed or 
mitigated and Members would like it noted that that 
concerns from the first application should apply to this 
application.   

Application Ref: 0020/2019

Development: Application for the development of land to the north of 
Coton Lane, Tamworth to
provide 163 dwellings (including the provision of 
affordable housing and public
open space)

Location: Coton House Farm, Coton Lane, Tamworth

Resolved That the Committee noted the item and raised the 
following issues:

1. Members expressed concerns regarding the 
impact on High School provision and local primary 
schools.  

2. Footpaths and pedestrian crossings should be 
provided for access to schools, shops and other 
facilities.

3. Concerns about additional traffic roads being 
unable to cope with the extra traffic and ‘pinch point’ 
at junction of A513 and Coton Lane. There was 
concern about the cumulative impact of development.  

4. Local Plan, Appendix A, originally 77 dwellings 
were recommended for site but this application is for 
163 houses. Is the site able to accommodate an extra 
86 dwellings?

Page 6



Planning Committee 5 March 2019

5

     5. More information requested on Flood risk and   
concerns regarding Severn Trent Sewage Works. 

6. Consideration was required in terms of 
archaeology.

7. Wildlife consideration was also required. 

8. What provision is made for affordable housing 
throughout the scheme?

Committee agreed to postpone the Planning training due 
to take place on Wednesday 27th March to a later date.  

Chair 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

 9th April 2019 
 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF APPLICATIONS 
 
 
 
 

REPORT OF ASSISTANT DIRECTOR - GROWTH & REGENERATION 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 
 

BOROUGH OF TAMWORTH 
          

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
          

SCHEDULE OF APPLICATIONS 
          

9th April 2019 

          
          
  A  Reports for Consideration 1   
          
  B  Variations to approved applications   0   
          
  C  Appeals received  0   
          
  D  Appeal decisions  0   
          
  E  Issues Papers   1   
          
  F  Footpath diversion applications   0   
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
          

 
          
       
          
         
          
  All other documents referred to in individual reports   
          
          
          
          
          
 
          

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 
 

SUMMARY OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR DETERMINATION 
 
Part A   Applications Received 
 
Application Number:  0056/2019 
 
Development:  Single storey rear extensions 
 
Location:  50 Thomas Street, Bolehall, Tamworth, B77 3PR 
 
Recommendation: Approval subject to the conditions. 

 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

. 
 
Part E   Issues papers 
 
Application Ref:  0020/2019 
 
 
Development:  Application for the development of land to the north of Coton Lane, Tamworth to 

provide 163 dwellings (including the provision of affordable housing and public 
open space) 

 
Location:  Coton House Farm, Coton Lane, Tamworth 
 
Recommendation: The Planning Committee are recommended to note the item for information 

and raise any relevant planning issues on which they wish officers to expand 
upon or further consider prior to formal determination 

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
. 

 
 

Page 11



 
Application Number:  0056/2019 
 
Development:  Single Storey Rear Extensions 
 
Location:  50 Thomas Street, Bolehall, Tamworth, B77 3PR,  
 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The application is being reported to Planning Committee at the request of Councillor Faulkner in line 

with the scheme of delegation. It was requested to be called in due to: 
1. Oppressive nature of the development on residents at 48 Thomas Street 
2. Inadequate provisions for off street parking in already over-crowded street 

 
1.2 The application property is a typical Victorian end terraced property. The property has no off-street 

parking. The proposal includes two rear single storey extensions. The first proposal relates to a 
single storey extension which projects from the rear of the property by 5.2 metres in length at a 
height of 2.8 metres. The proposal requires planning permission as it extends more than 4 metres 
from the rear of the property.  

 
1.3 The other extension is single storey and has a flat roof which measures 3.0 metres in height. The 

proposal is 2.4 metres wide by 2 metre. This includes a flat roof. The property has carried out on 
extensions, in the form of rear flat roofed dormer extension, however the size and scale of this did 
not require planning permission and cannot be considered as part of the proposal.  

 
1.4 Comments have also been raised by residents that the property is being used as a House in Multple 

Occupation (HMO), however a residential property can be used as shared house for up to six people  
without requiring planning permission. 

 
Location Plan 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 12



2. Policies 
 
2.1 Local Plan Policies  
 

SS1  - The Spatial Strategy for Tamworth 
SS2 – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
EN5 – Design and New Development 
Appendix C – Car Parking Standard 

 
3. Relevant Site History 

 
0014/2019 Two storey rear extension and single storey rear/side extension and provision of a side 

facing first floor window – Refused 
 

3. Consultation Responses 
 
3.1 Whilst every effort has been made to accurately summarise the responses received, full copies of 

the representations received are available to view at www.tamworth.gov.uk/planning                    
 
 
4. Additional Representations 
 
4.1 As part of the consultation process adjacent residents were notified. Whilst every effort has been 

made to accurately summarise the responses received, full copies of the representations received 
are available to view at www.tamworth.gov.uk.  
 
- 10 objections and a petition of 125 signatures regarding: 
- Severe loss of light and outlook to kitchen, living room, and patio 
- Existing dormer already an eyesore 
- Lack of parking and addition of more cars 
- Sewer/Drainage problems 
- HMO will degrade area and have greater impact on parking for which there is no provision 
- Noise and disturbance from current building 
- Commencement of building without permission 

 
5. Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
5.1 Due regard, where relevant, has been taken to the Tamworth Borough Council’s equality duty as 

contained within the Equalities Act 2010. The authority has had due regard to the public sector 
equality duty (PSED).  Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, a public authority must in the 
exercised of its functions, have due regard to the interests and needs of those sharing the protected 
characteristics under the Act, such as age, gender, disability and race. This proposal has no impact 
on such protected characteristics. 

 
5.2 There may be implications under Article 8 and Article 1 of the First Protocol of the Human Rights 

Act, regarding the right of respect for a person’s private and family life and home, and to the 
peaceful enjoyment of possessions.  However, these issues have been taken into account in the 
determination of this application. 

 
6. Planning Considerations 
 
6.1 The key issues to be considered at this stage are  
 

 Principle 
 Character and Appearance 
 Amenity of neighbouring properties 
 Supplementary Planning Document 
 Highway Safety 

 
6.2 Principle 
 

Page 13



6.2.1 The Tamworth Local Plan 2006-2031 (LP) was adopted in February 2016. The most up to date 
guidance which relates specifically to extensions are contained in the recently adopted Local Plan 
Polices namely policy EN5, there is currently a draft Design Guide to which limited weight can be 
attributed to. As well as the local plan there is guidance within the National Planning Policy 
Framework and its practice guidance (NPPF). 

 
6.3 Character and Appearance   
 
6.3.1 Policy EN5 – Design and New Development states that developments should be of a scale, layout 

form and massing which conserves or enhances the setting of development and utilize materials 
and overall detailed design which conserves or enhances the context of the development. Proposals 
should respect and where appropriate reflect existing local architectural and historic characteristics 
but without ruling out innovative or contemporary design which is still sympathetic to the valued 
characteristics of an area.  

 
6.3.2 The side extension and rear extensions are already in place and have flat roofs and finished in brick 

with a proposal for rendered walls to match the existing dwelling. The dormer window at the rear is 
in place with hanging tiles to match the existing. It is noted that the proposed dormer would have 
been permitted development and thus not requiring permission, but under Schedule 2, Part 1, Class 
B of the GPDO; materials must be similar in appearance to the existing house. This was not the 
case initially and therefore planning permission may have been required. However, matching tiles 
are now proposed. 

 
6.3.3 As constructed, the proposed single storey extensions are not considered to have a significant 

impact on the character and appearance of this locality for the following reasons;  
 

 Its scale, design and materials are sympathetic to the existing building 
 Its siting would not impact on the street scene being at the rear 

 
 
6.4 Amenity of neighbouring properties 
 
6.4.1 Policy EN5 – Design and New Development states that developments will be expected to minimise 

or mitigate environmental impacts for the benefit of existing and prospective occupants of 
neighbouring land. Such impacts may include loss of light, privacy or security or unacceptable noise, 
pollution, flooding or sense of enclosure. 

 
6.4.2 The proposal will not have a significant impact on the amenities of occupiers of neighbouring 

dwellings for the following reasons:  
 

o Following the Building Research Establishment (BRE) daylight and sunlight tests, the 
proposal does not have an adverse effect on daylight and sunlight to neighbouring 
properties 

 
o Due to the close proximity of the proposal from the neighbouring property at no. 48, there is 

likely to be some impact. It is noted that the rear of the dwelling at no. 48 is already 
darkened by the existence of a covered area and high boundary fence. However, although 
in close proximity given the narrow gaps between the dwellings, as the side extension is 
single storey and with a flat roof, this is not considered to significantly increase the loss of 
light and outlook from rear windows. 

 
6.4.3 The proposal includes two side windows proposed both of which are obscurely glazed and as such 

would not overlook or impact on privacy. 
 
6.5 Supplementary Planning Document 
 
6.5.1 Of consideration is Borough Council’s Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) titled Tamworth 

Design Guidance.  This has recently been out for consultation 
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/supplementary-planning-documents.  

 
6.5.2 The contents of the SPD currently have limited weight when considering this application. The 

Design Guidance is likely to be adopted in June 2019 where more substantial weight will be 
attributed to it in accordance with paragraph 48 of the National Planning Policy Framework. This 

Page 14



also states that an SPD add further detail to the policies in the development plan. They can be used 
to provide further guidance for development on specific sites, or on particular issues, such as 
design. Supplementary planning documents are capable of being a material consideration in 
planning decisions but are not part of the development plan.   

 
6.5.3 In relation to this application the following elements are material: 

 Careful design will be necessary in order to ensure that neighbouring properties are not 
overlooked and that appropriate levels of privacy are maintained. 

 A dormer window should be kept below the ridge line, smaller than the overall width of the roof 
and at least 50 cm away from the ridge, verge and eaves. It is recommended that a dormer 
window be centred on the window lines below and that the dormer takes up no more than half 
the overall width of the dwelling. 4.50 Materials and detailing of dormers should be carefully 
designed to consider the established and traditional pattern of materials and scales of the host 
dwelling and surrounding buildings. 

 Dormers with flat roofs can fit in well if they are appropriately finished with high quality materials, 
such as lead, and are carefully designed and detailed.  

It is considered that the proposal complies with this guidance. 
 
6.6 Highway Safety 
 
6.6.1 Policies SU2 and EN5 require development proposals to have particular regard to highway safety, 

service requirements and the capacity of the local road network and the adopted parking standards 
set out in Appendix C of the Local Plan.  

 
6.6.2 Despite concerns raised from residents it is considered that the proposal will not have a significant 

impact on highway safety for following reason. The majority of dwellings along the street do not 
currently have any parking spaces other than shared on street parking which is extremely limited 
due to the historic design of the dwellings and barrow frontages. Any proposals for additional 
bedrooms will exacerbate the situation and it is understood that the dwelling will become a HMO. 
Whilst 6 people can live together in such a property without requiring planning permission; the layout 
suggests 3 bedrooms plus a loft bedroom, which would require at least 3 parking spaces. Despite 
the layout as a HMO the use as this does not require planning permission and therefore it not a 
material consideration. The proposal indicates that the rooms are to be used for a study and a 
downstairs toilet. These facilities will improve the living environment for the dwelling but will not lead 
an increase in occupancy or bedrooms. As such they will not increase the pressure for parking for 
the dwelling. As such the proposal will not have a significant impact on highway safety as the 
proposals do not increase the parking requirements of the property. 

 
6.6.3 Based on the consideration of parking it would be difficult to substantiate a reason for refusal based 

on the impact of the proposal on parking in the area. The use as a HMO can be carried out without 
planning permission and cannot have any bearing on this consideration. 

 
 
7 Conclusion 
 
7.1 The proposed development is considered to be of an acceptable design, which will not have a 

significant adverse impact upon neighbouring amenity or the character of the area. Despite 
concerns in respect of highway safety it is not considered that there are reason grounds to refuse 
the application. Consequently the application is recommended for approval. 

 
 

8 Recommendation 
 

Approval subject to condition 
 

 

 
Conditions 

1. The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out in accordance with the application form, 
the supporting letter and drawings: Issue 3; Alterations at 50 Thomas Street, unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Reason: To define the permission. 
 

Page 15



  

 
 
PLANS 
 

 
 

Page 16



 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 17



 
 

ISSUES PAPER 
 
 
Development:  Major planning application for the development of Coton House Farm, to 

provide 163 dwellings (including the provision of affordable housing and public 
open space) 

 
Location:  Coton House Farm, Coton Lane, Tamworth 
 
Reference: 0020/2019 
 
 
1.  Purpose of Report  
 
1.1.  An Issues Paper regarding this application was considered at Planning Committee on 5th March 2019. 

A further issues paper was requested to give more information on certain matters, which will be 
discussed in this report. These issues were housing density, flooding, affordable housing, and highways 
issues. 

 
2.  Site and Location 
 
2.1. This application seeks planning permission for residential development, 163 dwellings, with associated 

public open space and access on land to the north of Coton Lane. The application also includes the 
demolition of Coton House Farm. The majority of the site is situated in Tamworth Borough Council 
jurisdiction, however a small part of the site is in Lichfield District Council, hence it is a cross-boundary 
application. 

 
2.2. In total, the site comprises 4.7ha of mainly arable agricultural land, sited to the north of Coton Lane. 

The site incorporates agricultural fields, and is located on greenfield and brownfield land. There are 
several buildings in residential and commercial use on a former farm. The site is roughly rectangular in 
shape. 

 
2.3. The site has high heritage value; despite the removal of a small number of field boundaries, the wider 

landscape retains its overall historic planned character. The site is located nearby to a Grade II listed 
bridge and Hopwas Conservation Area. 

 
2.4. There is a public right of way at the eastern edge of the site, which would need to be retained. 
 
2.5. The site is located within Flood Zones 2 and 3, partially defended. There is a sewage works nearby. 
 
3.  Background to proposals   
 
3.1.  The planning application is a result of pre-application advice, 0406/17. During the pre-application advice 

process, changes were made continuously to the scheme. These changes progressed the scheme 
towards one which would be considered more acceptable to the Local Planning Authority. However, this 
scheme has not yet been assessed by the Planning Department and therefore may be subject to 
change. 

 
3.2. The planning application seeks planning permission for residential development of 163 dwellings, with 

associated public open space and vehicular access. The vehicular access is proposed off Coton Lane 
to the south of the site. A single point of access is proposed.  

  
3.3.  The site is an allocated site in the adopted Tamworth Local Plan 2006-2031. The principle of a 

residential development in this location has therefore already been established as acceptable. 
 
3.4. The application is accompanied by a layout plan which shows how the dwellings are laid out across the 

development. The plan shows the housing mix, which sets out that the scheme will be split into no.6 1 
bed (4%), no.69 2 bed (42%), no.65 3 bed (40%), no.23 4 and 5 bed (14%). The scheme will be broadly 
two storey. Again, this scheme has not yet been assessed by the Planning Department and therefore 
these numbers may be subject to change. 

Page 18



 
3.5. The application is supported by the following documents: 
 

 Transport Assessment and Travel Plan 
 Planning, Design and Access Statement 
 Flood Risk Assessment 
 Drainage Strategy 
 Heritage Impact Assessment 
 Ecology and Bat Survey 
 Landscape Strategy 
 Phase 1 Site Appraisal 

 
3.6. The planning application is now valid and has been assigned reference number 0020/2019. 
 
3.7. The plans and all associated documents will be available on the Council’s website by visiting the 

planning application search page, at www.tamworth.gov.uk (viewed by entering the application number, 
0020/2019). 
 

3.8. Members are also invited to discuss the application further with either Katie Johnson (the Planning 
Case Officer) or Andrew Collinson (Senior Planning Officer) outside of the Committee meeting, if there 
are specific issues or detail on which you require further clarification.  

 
4.  Consultation  

 
4.1.  Following receipt of the planning application, the Council, as Local Planning Authority has undertaken 

extensive consultation, including with statutory and non-statutory consultees. A notice has been 
published in the Tamworth Herald and a number of site notices have also been erected adjacent to the 
site. In addition, individual notification letters have been sent to residential properties near to the site. 
As part of the application site is within Lichfield District Council’s jurisdiction, they have also been 
consulted with regards to this application. There are no neighbouring properties in Lichfield District 
Council who have been consulted, due to the distance of the proposal from properties. 

 
5. Additional information has been requested as a result of the previous Issues Paper on housing 

density, flooding, affordable housing, and highways issues. This information is detailed below. 
  
5.1.  Housing density:  
 

The adopted Tamworth Local Plan 2006-2031 indicates within the trajectory that the estimated number 
of houses on the site would be 77. The proposal is for residential development of 163 dwellings. The 
information below identifies how the number of 77 was reached in the Local Plan. 

 
Developable area 
The site originally considered as part of the 2012 Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessment (SHLAA) was approximately 8.4ha and included land to the west of the current 
site, extending to the borough boundary. A significant proportion of that site was within Flood 
Zone 3 and, on this basis, the SHLAA assessment considered the gross developable area to 
be only 3.65ha. Prior to the submission of the Local Plan for examination, the boundary of the 
allocated site was redrawn to exclude areas included in Flood Zone 3B (those at highest risk of 
flooding), resulting in the current allocated site, measuring approximately 4.87ha. 

 
Anticipated yield 
The 77 dwellings figure included within the housing trajectory that accompanied the Local Plan 
was calculated based on a density of 35 dwellings/ha, applied to the net developable area of 
the site.  

 
Net developable area 
The net developable area was considered to be 60% of the gross area, based on the ratio 
standards below: 

 
Site Size Gross net ratio standard 
Up to 0.4 hectares 100% 

Page 19



0.4 - 2 hectares 80% 
2 hectares + 60% 

 
The net developable area is generally considered to be lower on larger sites, as a greater 
proportion of those sites is taken up by other elements such as open space, highways and 
other associated infrastructure. The ratio standards set out in the table above were derived 
from ‘Tapping the Potential’, a report published by DETR, 1999. It is important to note that 
these are the default ratios and are used where no further site-specific information is available 
to guide estimates of potential development. 

 
Density 
The 2012 SHLAA update used Typical Urban Area (TUA) densities of 30 – 40 dwellings/ha in 
urban areas and a minimum of 40 dwellings/ha for sites located in close proximity to local and 
neighbourhood centres and public transport hubs. This represented a slight increase from the 
2011 SHLAA, in order to provide greater flexibility and to reflect the overall development 
strategy for the Borough which aimed to focus development in the network of centres. The 
density of 35 dwellings/ha was applied to the site as it represented the midpoint of the TUA 
range of 30 – 40 dwellings/ha for sites not located within existing centres, or in close proximity 
to public transport hubs.  

 
Other factors 
It is important to recognise that actual yield on any of the allocated site may be affected by 
issues not evident at the time of the assessment. The yields derived for the purposes of the 
SHLAA, and included in the original housing trajectory, have the potential to change for 
individual sites that progress through to the later stages of the planning process. The Level 2 
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) (undertaken in 2014) established that the Lower 
Tame flood defence scheme, which was completed in 2013 and included a new flood 
embankment to the north of Coton Lane, would leave the site defended against previous flood 
risks. 

 
5.2. Flooding: 
 

The site is located within Flood Zones 2 and 3, associated with the River Tame to the west of the site. 
The site is within 20m of a river. The site is partially defended, with a 200 year standard of protection. 
There is a both a ground water and sewer water risk identified. The existing flood defence is provided to 
the west, east and north of the site. 

 
 The Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) submitted provides recommendations for the mitigation of flood risk. 

The mitigation proposed is to raise development plateaus to 58m AOD and 58.85 AOD. This is on both 
halves of the site, west and east respectively. The west half of the site will have floodable ground floors, 
no ground floor bedrooms and no bungalows. Solid construction materials will be used for groundwater 
ingress prevention. Sockets will be wired from the ceiling. A place of safety should be provided. 

 

 

Page 20



 
 
 

   
SCC Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) response (summarised): 

 The Surface Water Flood Map shows minor ponding in the east and to the south of the 
site, indicating a surface water risk. 

 Records show past flooding to have affected a small area to the west and south of the 
site in 1955, 1992 and 2007. 

 There is also a watercourse within 5m of the site (to the north east). 
 Refusal recommended: ‘In the absence of an acceptable Flood Risk Assessment and 

Drainage Strategy we OBJECT to the grant of planning permission and recommend 
refusal on this basis’ 

The Environment Agency (EA) have been consulted but no response has been received. 
  

Discussions are ongoing to resolve flooding concerns. 
 
5.3. Affordable housing: 
 

Provision for affordable housing has been provided on site, in line with Policy HG4 of the adopted 
Tamworth Local Plan 2006-2031. The affordable housing can be seen on the plans in pink, compared 
to the non-affordable houses shown in blue. 

 
Policy HG4 seeks to deliver at least 1,000 affordable dwellings within the Borough over the plan period. 
In order to achieve this, the policy sets a requirement for at least 20% of dwellings on new residential 
developments of 10/more dwellings to be affordable. The current proposal would see the delivery of 33 
affordable dwellings, which equates to approximately 20%. The policy also requires a mix of 25% 
intermediate tenure and 75% rented, to be split between social rented and affordable rented. 
 

Type of affordable housing: Number of dwellings: 
1 bedroom terrace 6 
2 bedroom semi/terrace 13 
3 bedroom semi-detached 14 

 
 

Page 21



 
    Plan showing location of affordable houses on site 
 
5.4. Highways issues: 
 
 The planning application includes a Transport Assessment, which gives information in terms of 

projected trip generation and impact as a result of the proposed development. Trip generation is 
assessed using the TRICS database (a nationally accepted database, containing observed generated 
traffic data at a large number of different development sites). 

 The forecast trip generation for 163 dwellings is 87 trips in the morning and afternoon 
peak hours (per day) (AM Peak: 0800-0900 and PM Peak: 1700-1800). It has been 
estimated that 86% of these trips will be to/from the west, and 14% to/from the east of 
the site. 

 In terms of mitigation proposed, the traffic impact of the above has been modelled. The 
summarised results suggest that ‘the junction [Coton Lane/Lichfield Road junction] 
operates within capacity in all of the assessment scenarios’. Therefore, in terms of the 
impact upon the local road network, ‘the junction assessment demonstrates that the 
development traffic can be accommodated without the need for mitigation measures 
whilst taking into account nearby committed schemes’. As a result, the submitted 
Transport Assessment deems that traffic mitigation measures are not necessary; ‘the 
overall traffic impact of the development will be negligible’. 

 
SCC Highways have been consulted on the submitted Transport Assessment but no response has 
been received at the time of writing. 

 
6.  Recommendation  
 
 The Planning Committee are recommended to note the item for information and raise any relevant 

planning issues on which they require further clarification and which are requested to be addressed in 
the subsequent report to Planning Committee when this application is formally considered. 

Page 22


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Schedule of Applications

